## SENATE COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

#### May 26, 1999 Hearing Room C

1:00 PM Tapes 199 ñ 202

#### **MEMBERS PRESENT: Sen. Bryant, Chair**

Sen. Courtney, Vice-Chair
Sen. Brown
Sen. Burdick
Sen. Nelson
Sen. Duncan
Sen. Tarno

#### **STAFF PRESENT: Bill Taylor, Counsel**

Anne Tweedt, Counsel

Kathy Courtney, Administrative Support

### MEASURE/ISSUES HEARD: HB 2297 Public Hearing, Work Session

#### HB 3012B Public Hearing

HB 2226A Work Session

SB 722, Reconsideration, Work Session

#### HB 3376A Public Hearing

#### HB 2977B Public Hearing

- HB 2227A Reconsideration, Work Session
- HB 2224, Reconsideration, Work Session

SB 678A Work Session

HB 2479A Work Session

These minutes are in compliance with Senate and House Rules. Only text enclosed in quotation marks reports a speakeris exact words. For complete contents, please refer to the tapes.

T

٦٢

	Comments
, SIDE A	
Vice Chair Courtney	Calls meeting to order at 1:10 PM.
PUBLIC HEARING	1
Anne Christian	State Court Administratorís Office, Indigent Defense Services
	Testifies in support of HB 2297 which modifies provisions relating to paymer of non-attorney expenses for the indigent. Asserts that people who have limite means to retain legal counsel will be disenfranchised without court appointed counsel.
Vice Chair Courtney	Closes HB 2297 Public Hearing.
VORK SESSION	
Sen. Tarno	MOTION: Moves HB 2297 to the floor with a DO PASS recommendation.
I	VOTE: 4-0-3
	EXCUSED: 3 - Sen. Brown, Chair Bryant, Sen. Duncan
Vice Chair Courtney	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
	SEN. TARNO will lead discussion on the floor.
Sen. Courtney	Closes HB 2297 Work Session.
PUBLIC HEARING	"
	PUBLIC HEARING   Anne Christian   Vice Chair Courtney   VORK SESSION   Sen. Tarno   Vice Chair

		Testifies in support of HB 3012B which requires school districts to acquire or develop firearm safety education programs for students. Compares HB 3012B with SB 887 which requires public school district boards to adopt a gun safety program for students in kindergarten through sixth grade.
139	Tim Pitzer	Oregon State Shooting Association
		Testifies and submits written testimony in support of HB 3012B. (EXHIBIT A) Asserts that awareness is crucial to gun safety. Discusses the gun safety events for children.
187	Chair Bryant	What is your position on SB 887, Mr. Harder?
188	Harder	I support SB 887. Discusses the fiscal impact of HB 3012B. Proposes amendment to HB 3012B if it conflicts with SB 887.
209	Sen. Brown	Expresses concern about the high teen suicide rate. Why not promote an abstinence-based curriculum for teen gun use?
225	Pitzer	Asserts that children must be taught the consequences of improper gun use.
244	Sen. Burdick	Why should we train children how to use gun during the school day with public funds?
253	Harder	Contends that gun safety programs are voluntary.
263	Sen. Burdick	Expresses concern that HB 3012B fails to provide guidelines regarding which groups of children will participate in gun safety programs.
272	Harder	Asserts that knowledge is foundational to making good decisions regarding firearm use.
290	Daniel Santos	Oregon Governorís Office, Education Policy Coordinator
		Testifies and submits written testimony in opposition to HB 3012B. (EXHIBIT B) Discusses concerns about placing instruction burdens and fiscal responsibilities on schools. Asserts that school districts currently have the option to provide firearm safety courses.
325	Jim Green	Oregon School Boards Association
		Testifies in opposition to HB 3012B. Asserts that HB 3012B is a mandate on public schools which excludes private and home school children.
348	Chair Bryant	What is your position on SB 887, Mr. Green?

349	Green	The Oregon School Boards Association opposes SB 887.
351	Wilma Wells	Confederation of Oregon School Administrators
		Testifies in opposition to HB 3012B. Discusses gun safety curriculum approval and handgun license.
396	Chair Bryant	Are schools required to teach driverís education?
397	Green	No, most school districts offer it as an optional course.
400	Chair Bryant	Discusses the mandated and optional provisions of SB 887.
423	Sen. Brown	In terms of relative issues, driverís education is more relevant than firearm safety.
430	Green	SB 887 mandates school districts to acquire a fire safety program.
TAPE 20	00, SIDE A	а 
019	Sen. Duncan	Cautions committee about mandating gun safety instruction.
026	Sen. Courtney	Compares HB 3012B in its original form with HB 3012B.
042	Chair Bryant	Closes HB 3012B Public Hearing.
<u>HB 2226</u>	WORK SESSION	
052	Chair Bryant	Discusses if the mandatory reporting statutes imply a private right of action.
059	Sen. Brown	Suggests passing HB 2226A which includes employees of the Support Enforcement Division within the abuse reporting statutes in its original form. We can address the private right of action issue through another means.
068	Counsel Taylor	Discusses the HB 2226A ñA2 through ñA10 amendments. (EXHIBITS C - K)
124	James Garrett	Attorney, Garrett Hemann Robertson Paulus Jennings & Comstock PC
		Testifies in support of HB 2226A. Discusses child abuse litigation in which he was named as a defendant for failure to report.
165	Chair Bryant	Did your liability insurance cover your litigation costs?

h		
168	Garrett	Yes, after an initial denial. Discusses the applicability of liability insurance for failure to report child abuse.
204	Sen. Brown	Did the employee learn of the abuse within the scope of employment? Did the employee tell anyone?
210	Garrett	Yes, he learned of the abuse at work, but did not report it to anyone.
216	John Hemann	Attorney, Garrett Hemann Robertson Paulus Jennings & Comstock PC
		Testifies in support of HB 2226A. Discusses a law firmis jeopardy in an employeeis failure to report hearsay situations. Asserts that liability arising from indirect contact with victims jeopardizes all employers.
336	Sen. Brown	Lack of awareness of reporting requirements is a critical problem.
349	Garrett	Cites the professional organizations which sponsor continuing education courses. Thorough review of the abuse reporting statutes is covered in these courses.
397	Sen. Brown	What are the abuse reporting exclusions?
404	Chair Bryant	Reads the abuse reporting exclusions listed in ORS 419B.010.
422	Sen. Nelson	Is an attorney required to report abuse when acting beyond the scope of his or her official duties?

# TAPE 199, SIDE B

008	Counsel Taylor	Yes, if that professional comes into contact with the abused child.
021	Mike Crue	<b>Attorney, Oregon Medical Association</b> Testifies in support of HB 2226A. Discusses the ambiguity of the law regarding failure to report child abuse.
062	Sen. Duncan	Why is the language of HB 2226A drafted in the negative?
064	Chair Bryant	Explains why bill must exclude private right of action.
069	Sen. Brown	Discusses the broad nature of HB 2226A in which an employer is liable but not an employee.
085	Counsel Taylor	Explains the application of the abuse reporting statutes by analogy.

102	Sen. Brown	Do the abuse reporting statutes allow a civil cause of action?
105	Counsel Taylor	No, there is no civil liability in current abuse reporting statutes.
115	Chair Bryant	Discusses other sanctions for failure to report child abuse including the loss of oneís professional license.
130	Duncan	Does HB 2226A weaken the current abuse reporting statutes?
132	Chair Bryant	No, HB 2226A clarifies the current abuse reporting statutes.
133	Sen. Brown	Yes, HB 2226A weakens the current abuse reporting statutes.
147	Kirk Hall	Oregon State Bar Professional Liability Fund Testifies in support of HB 2226A. Asserts that HB 2226A does not weaken the current abuse reporting statutes but clarifies them. Explains that people tend to settle a case rather than risk losing in court.
257	Richard Lane	Oregon Trial Lawyers Association Testifies and submits written testimony in opposition to HB 2226A. (EXHIBIT L) Discusses the limited burden to report child abuse on identified officials to protect children. Explains an officialis immunity from civil and criminal liability.
291	Chair Bryant	Donít you think the threat of losing oneís professional license is a deterrent against failure to follow the abuse reporting statutes?
295	Lane	Perhaps, but it does not protect the victim from failure abuse. Unfortunately, this bill prohibits a private right of action.
323	Chair Bryant	In the Garrett/Sideman case, do you think the plaintiff had a legitimate private right of action?
327	Lane	Discusses inconsistencies of the Garret/Sideman case.
362	Chair Bryant	Asserts that firms are subject to litigation regarding abuse of which they had no knowledge. Is that appropriate?
378	Lane	Asserts that the person harmed by failure to report abuse must be entitled to present his or her case. HB 2226A eliminates that right.
388	Chair Bryant	Discusses the impact of allowing punitive damages in abuse reporting litigation.

396	Lane	The issue is a victimís right to pursue a private cause of action. Punitive damages which apply broadly to any litigation is not the issue addressed by HB 2226A.

TAPE 200, SIDE B

008	Hall	Discusses extent of personal liability in private right of action cases.
034	Sen. Brown	Would you support requiring everyone to be subject to the child abuse reporting statutes?
036	Hall	Discusses other states i child abuse reporting statutes, some as defined by legislature in which all adults are subject to the reporting statutes.
056	Chair Bryant	Closes HB 2226A Work Session.
060	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to RECONSIDER the vote by which SB 722 was moved to the floor with a DO PASS recommendation.
		VOTE: 6-0-1 EXCUSED: 1 - Sen. Burdick
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.

## **SB 722 WORK SESSION**

067	Chair Bryant	Introduces SB 722 ñ7 amendments which modify Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) payment allowances. <b>(EXHIBIT M)</b>
082	Counsel Tweedt	Discusses the consulting actuaryís May 24, 1999 letter regarding PERS tier 3 proposals. (EXHIBIT N)
094	Mark Johnson	<b>Consulting Actuary</b> Testifies and submits written testimony with neutrality on SB 722. <b>(EXHIBIT O)</b> Discusses his May 26 letter regarding SB 722 savings. Discusses the impact of eliminating sick leave accruals into retirement pay.
126	Chair Bryant	What would the SB 722 savings be over 30 years?

129	Johnson	The savings would be billions of dollars; 2 percent of the payroll of all public employees who participate in PERS.
135	Chair Bryant	Obtain an estimate for me, please.
141	Johnson	Discusses his letter regarding tier 3 savings.
192	Sen. Brown	How would savings be realized if employeesí unused sick leave is not calculated into their retirement salary?
210	Johnson	Explains the calculation formulas for final average salary and the money match benefit.
294	Sen. Brown	Unused sick leave doesnít impact savings when the economy is good. So, is no savings actually realized?
306	Johnson	Discusses the benefit formula in relation to the money market.
348	Sen. Courtney	What is the current rate of inflation?
354	Johnson	The current inflation rate is 3 ‡ percent.
380	Sen. Courtney	Who decides the rate of inflation?
382	Johnson	I do and the interim state economist at Portland State University.
395	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT SB 722-7 amendments dated 05/26/99.
		VOTE: 4-3-0
		AYE: 4 - Duncan, Nelson, Tarno, Bryant
		NAY: 3 - Brown, Burdick, Courtney
	Chair Bryant	The motion CARRIES.
409	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves SB 722 to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation.

	Chair Bryant	VOTE: 4-3-0 AYE: 4 - Duncan, Nelson, Tarno, Bryant NAY: 3 - Brown, Burdick, Courtney
	Chair Bryant	The motion CARRIES.
		SEN. BRYANT will lead discussion on the floor.
419	Chair Bryant	Closes SB 722 Public Hearing.
400	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to RECONSIDER the vote by which HB 2425A was moved to the floor with a DO PASS recommendation.
420		VOTE: 7-0-0
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
TAPE 20	1, SIDE A	
<u>HB 2425</u>	A WORK SESSION	
004	Anne Tweedt	Introduces HB 2425A which removes the element of negligence from the offense of allowing a dog to run at large. Discusses the HB 2425A ñA6 amendments. <b>(EXHIBIT P)</b>
006	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT HB 2425A-A6 amendments dated 5/25/99.
		VOTE: 7-0-0
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.

008	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves HB 2425A to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation.
		VOTE: 7-0-0
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
		SEN. BURDICK will lead discussion on the floor.
015	Chair Bryant	Closes HB 2425A Work Session. Recesses hearing at 3:00 PM.
024	Chair Bryant	Resumes meeting at 3:44 PM.
HB 3376	PUBLIC HEARING	
)29	Everett Cutter	Oregon Railroad Association
		Testifies and submits written testimony in support of HB 3376. <b>(EXHIBIT Q)</b> Asserts that increasing the penalty for criminal trespass will deter offenders and encourage prosecution of the offense. Discusses the physical dangers of trespassing on railroad property.
091	Chair Bryant	What is a shortline railroad?
093	Robert Melbo	Oregon Shortline Railroad Association
		Testifies and submits written testimony in support of HB 3376. <b>(EXHIBIT R)</b> Defines class I, regional, and shortline railroads. Discusses the public railroad accidents and the importance to change the public attitudes regarding railroad property.
176	Sen. Courtney	I have read that the Salem corridor is 2 <sup>nd</sup> worst in the nation for railway accidents. Is this true?
180	Cutter	Iím not sure, but itís one of the worst.
183	Sen. Courtney	Explains that physically barring access to railroad structures and right of ways is impossible.

228	Sen. Courtney	Expresses concern about railroad tracks in close proximity with Highland Elementary School and North Salem High School.
239	Cutter	Yes, and Tokyo International University is adjacent to railroad tracks.
246	Sen. Brown	I hesitate to support the bill because the public has the right of way.
245	Chair Bryant	Are railroad rights of way within scope of HB 3376?
253	Cutter	Yes, if the rights of way are not abandoned properties.
260	Chair Bryant	Discusses the broad scope of HB 3376. Suggests deletion of rights of way.
261	Nebo	A railroad right of way is broader than a railroad track.
289	Sen. Burdick	Suggests a posting requirement to indicate rights of way.
310	Chair Bryant	Trespassing on private railway property is currently a Class C misdemeanor.
316	Ingrid Swenson	Oregon Criminal Defense Lawyers Association Testifies in opposition to HB 3376. Discusses the public conception that railroads are public property and the railroad officialsi obligation to change that perception. Explains that HB 3376 may be enforced unevenly. Suggests amending the current trespass statutes to address railroad offenses and safety.
393	Claudia Howells	Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT), Rail Division Testifies and submits written testimony in support of HB 3376. (EXHIBIT S) Discusses ODOTís efforts to educate the public on railroad safety.
TAPE 20	2, SIDE A	
003	Howells	Continues discussion about increasing the criminal offense of railroad trespass as a stronger law enforcement tool. Explains that posting of railroad property is impractical.
018	Sen. Burdick	Do you have any information on repeat violations? To increase a penalty for a crime, do you need to demonstrate that you need a greater deterrent?
024	Howells	I donit have any data because repeat offenders are not cited for initial offenses. The level of the offense is less important than creating a crime unique to railroad trespasses.

032	Sen. Burdick	Is the objective to make the penalty strong so that law enforcement will enforce it?
033	Howells	Yes and make it specific to railroads.
036	Chair Bryant	Closes HB 3376 Public Hearing.
044	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to RECONSIDER the vote which moved HB 2977B to the floor with a DO PASS recommendation.
		VOTE: 5-0-2
		EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
HB 2977	B WORK SESSION	
050	Counsel Taylor	Discusses the HB 2977B B4 conflict amendments which resolve the legislation with SB 20. (EXHIBIT T)
060	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT HB 2977B-B4 amendments dated 05/26/99.
		VOTE: 5-0-2
		EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
062	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves HB 2977B to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation.
	][	VOTE: 5-0-2
		EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno

	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
		Sen. Courtney will lead discussion on the floor.
083	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to RECONSIDER the vote which moved HB 2230 to the floor with a DO PASS recommendation.
	I	VOTE: 5-0-2 EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
<u>HB 2230</u>	WORK SESSION	
088	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT HB 2230-4 amendments dated 05/25/99.
	I	VOTE: 5-0-2 EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
090	Chair Bryant Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED. MOTION: Moves HB 2230 to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation.
090		MOTION: Moves HB 2230 to the floor with a DO PASS
090		MOTION: Moves HB 2230 to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation. VOTE: 5-0-2

	Chair Bryant	Closes HB 2230 Work Session.
095	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to RECONSIDER the vote which moved HB 2227A to the floor with a DO PASS recommendation.
	]L	VOTE: 5-0-2
		EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
H <b>B 2227</b>	A WORK SESSION	
115	Merry Larsen	Department of Justice, Support Enforcement Division
		Discusses Testifies and submits written testimony in support of HB 2227A. <b>(EXHIBIT U)</b> The HB 2227A ñA2 amendments remove the sunset provisions and duplicate sections of the Welfare Reform Act legislation.
130	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT HB 2227A-A2 amendments dated 05/25/99.
		VOTE: 5-0-2
		EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
132	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves HB 2227A to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation.
		VOTE: 5-0-2
		EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.

		SEN. BROWN will lead discussion on the floor.
136	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to RECONSIDER the vote which moved HB 2224 to the floor with a DO PASS recommendation.
		VOTE: 5-0-2 EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
146	Chair Bryant	The Senate Judiciary Committee will review HB 2224 when the amendments are completed.
<u>SB 678A</u>	WORK SESSION	
155	Counsel Taylor	SB 678A creates the crime of interference with agricultural operations. Discusses the SB 678A ñA4 and ñA5 amendments which make the crime a Class C felony and a Class A Misdemeanor, respectively. <b>(EXHIBITS V and W)</b>
172	Chair Bryant	Discusses SB 678A ñA5 sanctions which will not require jail time.
180	Counsel Taylor	Discusses behaviors which are excluded from the crime of interference with agricultural operations.
185	Sen. Courtney	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT SB 678A-A5 amendments dated 05/25/99.
	n	VOTE: 5-0-2 EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Brown	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
190	Sen. Brown	Will SB 678A prohibit farm worker labor negotiations?
194	Chair Bryant	No, not if workers are lawfully on the premises.

224	Sen. Courtney	MOTION: Moves SB 678A to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation.
		VOTE: 5-0-2 EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
		SEN. FERRIOLI will lead discussion on the floor.
257	Chair Bryant	Closes SB 678A Work Session.
HB 2479.	A WORK SESSION	
258	Counsel Taylor	HB 2479A relates to the classification of the Oregon Criminal Justice Commission rules. Discusses the HB 2479A ñA5 and ñA6 amendments. (EXHIBITS X and Y)
288	Phil Lemman	Criminal Justice Commission Testifies in support of HB 2479A. Explains that the HB 2479A ñA6 amendments referencing prior adult offenses in ranking system.
311	Chair Bryant	What is the additional cost due to increased prison time?
314	Lemman	I donit know. HB 2479A will increase the number of offenders, not the length of sentences.
328	Ingrid Swenson	Oregon Criminal Defense Lawyers Association Testifies in support of the HB 2479A ñA5 and ñA6 amendments.
336	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT HB 2479A-A5 amendments dated 05/20/99.
		VOTE: 5-0-2 EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno

	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
338	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves to ADOPT HB 2479A-A6 amendments dated 05/24/99.
	1	VOTE: 5-0-2 EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
341	Chair Bryant	MOTION: Moves HB 2479A to the floor with a DO PASS AS AMENDED recommendation.
		VOTE: 5-0-2 EXCUSED: 2 - Sen. Duncan, Sen. Tarno
	Chair Bryant	Hearing no objection, declares the motion CARRIED.
		SEN. COURTNEY will lead discussion on the floor.
350	Chair Bryant	Closes HB 2479A Work Session. Adjourns meeting at 4:30 PM.

Submitted By, Reviewed By,

Kathy Courtney, Sarah Watson

Administrative Support Office Coordinator

#### EXHIBIT SUMMARY

- A. Written testimony in support of HB 3012B, Tim Pitzer, 10pp
- B. Written testimony in opposition to HB 3012B, Daniel Santos, 1p
- C. HB 2226 ñA2 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- D. HB 2226 ñA3 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- E. HB 2226 ñA4 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- F. HB 2226 ñA5 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- G. HB 2226 ñA6 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 3pp
- H. HB 2226 ñA7 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- I. HB 2226 ñA8 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- J. HB 2226 ñA9 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- K. HB 2226 ñA10 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- L. Written testimony in opposition to HB 2226, Richard Lane, 1p
- M. SB 722 ñ7 proposed amendments, Anne Tweedt, 35pp
- N. Overview of SB 722A and the Modified Tier Two systems, Fred McDonnal, 5pp
- O. Overview of SB 722A Pension plus Annuity Method, Mark O. Johnson, 2pp
- P. HB 2425A ñA6 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 6pp
- Q. Written testimony in support of HB 3376A, Everett Cutter, 2pp
- R. Written testimony in support of HB 3376A, Robert Melbo, 5pp
- S. Written testimony in support of HB 3376A, Claudia Howells, 1p
- T. HB 2977B ñB4 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 2pp
- U. HB 2227A ñA2 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- V. SB 678A ñA4 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- W. SB 678A ñA5 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- X. HB 2479A ñA5 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- Y. HB 2479A ñA6 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p
- Z. HB 2230 ñ4 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p

AA. HB 2224 ñA3 proposed amendments, Bill Taylor, 1p

BB. Written testimony in opposition to HB 2226A, Victor Congleton, 2pp